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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

Dear Shareholders,

OVERVIEW

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Computer And
Technologies Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present
the unaudited interim results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the six-month ended 30 June 2018.

Attributed to the improved performances from both Application
Software!"” and Solutions Services? businesses, the Group’s overall
revenue rose by HK$12.6 million, or 10.7% to HK$130.8 million (2017:
HK$118.2 million). The overall gross profit of the Group improved by
HK$9.6 million, or 15.0% to HK$73.3 million and more positively, the gross
profit margin also increased 2.1% to 56.0% (2017: 53.9%) comparing same
period last year.

The total non-operating incomes during the reporting period were
almost the same as previous period in effect that the increased bank
interest income and revaluation gain from investment properties were
offset by the decrease in tax refund received from PRC operation and
insignificant valuation loss in the financial assets.

As a result of the increased assessable profits and the absence of reversal
of tax provision, income tax expense increased significantly by 141.9%
to HK$4.2 million (2017: HK$1.7 million) compared with same period last
year.

With the abovementioned, the Group’s consolidated net profit
attributable to shareholders jumped up by 32.4% to HK$30.2 million
(2017: HK$22.8 million). The basic earnings per share soared to 12.47 HK
cents (2017: 9.42 HK cents) or improved by 32.4% compared with same
period last year.

In view of improved business performance and in return to the
continuous supports from the shareholders, the Board declared the
distribution of an interim dividend of 9 HK cents (2017: an interim
dividend of 7 HK cents and a special dividend of 3 HK cents) per ordinary
share for the six-month ended 30 June 2018 to the shareholders.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Application Software

The Group's Application Software business recorded double-digit growth
in both revenue and operating profit excluding the value added tax
(“VAT") refund.

The Group’s Human Resources Management Software (“HRMS”) business
continued to expand its customer base and successfully acquired new
orders from various industries in the region, including a market leader in
local property and facility management industry, a leading environmental
services company in Hong Kong and a global language school in PRC.
In addition, the Group has been expanding its HRMS on cloud and has
successfully recruited a number of new customers during the reporting
period. The management believes that there would be increasing
demand on the Group’s HRMS cloud services which would create
additional recurring income stream for the Group.

Apart from the business performance, the Group was recently invited to
the China Internet+ Industrial Innovation Development BBS 2018 and the
China Economic Summit 2018 in Beijing. At these two major conferences,
the Group’s HRMS was honoured with three industry accolades, including
the “China Internet+ Most Influential HRM Software”, “China’s Top 10
Innovation Brands: HR Industry” and “Best Payroll Management Software
in Greater China”.

Building on existing customer base with strong recurring business,
the revenue from the Group’s Enterprise Retail Management Software
("ERMS”) business continued to grow with its ongoing service and
maintenance incomes. During the reporting period, the business was
awarded major contracts from an international luxury brand and the local
major community benefactor to upgrade their existing ERMS throughout
the region in the coming years.

The revenue contributed by the Group’s Enterprise Procurement
Management Software (“EPMS”) business was also improved with
various new orders acquired in the first half of the year. In particular, the
management is glad to report that our EPMS solutions on cloud were
awarded long term contracts by The Hong Kong and China Gas Company
Limited (Towngas) and a note-issuing bank in Hong Kong during the
reporting period.

On the contrary, the revenue of the Group’s Enterprise Information
Management Software (“EIMS”) was decreased with delay in contract
conclusion for new software license sales. The management foresees the
performance of EIMS would be rebound in the second half of the year
upon the finalisation of the numerous new orders under negotiation.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

EFEHEE)

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Application Software (continued)

The Group'’s R&D efforts continued to solidify with enhanced products/
modules launched to the market. During the reporting period, the Group
enhanced its HRMS cloud services platform and Work Force Management
("WFM”") modules and released Webscan, a smart scanning function
embedded in the web-based VitalDoc, an EIMS’s flagship product,
document management solution.

Solutions and Integration Services

During the reporting period, the Group’s Solutions Services team
managed to catch up with the project delivery progress left over from
previous years. Together with new business concluded during the
reporting period, the revenue and profit contributions of Solutions and
Integration Services business rose by 11.4% and 80.9%, respectively.

The Group continued to carry on the Managed Services? in supporting
the second 10-year services contract (the “Contract”) of the Customer
Care and Billing System (“CCBS”) for the Water Supplies Department
under the HKSAR Government (the “Government”). During the reporting
period, the Group had incurred development costs of HK$4.3 million for
the certain enhancements of the CCBS under the Contract. It is expected
that the related development would be continued for the next 18 to 24
months with the peak demand of resources during the coming twelve
months. Consistent with last year’s practice, the related development
costs were capitalised as deferred development costs during the period
under review.

Leveraging on various multi-year service engagements and long term
customer relationships established, the Development Services®? business
continued to acquire new service orders from both the government
and commercial enterprises, including Hong Kong Airport Authority,
Census and Statistics Department and Marine Department under the
Government, during the first half of the year. The management is also
delighted to report that the business had successfully acquired a number
of new customers including a major property developer and a local note-
issuing bank during the reporting period.

The performance of the Group’s Integration Services business® in PRC
was maintained with no material fluctuation compared with same period
last year.

Furthermore, in order to strengthen the management bandwidth and
speed up the related business development, the Group had recruited
a senior executive with strong background in Solution and Integration
business to join the Group in August 2018.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

e-Service and related business

The revenue and profit contribution as well as market share of the
Group’s GETS™ business was stably maintained during the reporting
period. The business is in the process of providing a full range of e-services
with the latest technology to facilitate electronic transmission between
our Ge-TS system and the Government gateways under the renewed
contract period starting from 1 January 2019.

The Group’s BPOP! business was dropped slightly during the reporting
period.

Investments

Due to the increase in fair value gain of the investment properties, the
Group’s investments segment recorded an increase in profit of 23.3% to
HK$4.1 million (2017: HK$3.4 million).

PROSPECT

Looking ahead, the outbreak of the US-China trade war and the impact of
US interest rate hikes will continue to impact the global economy in 2018.
Amid all the uncertainties, the Group will keep monitoring the business
environment cautiously, remain committed to the development of the
Application Software and Solutions businesses and accelerate its growth
through acquisitions in the region.

Footnotes:

m The Group’s Application Services business engages in the provision of
application software and e-business services for enterprises including (i)
the provision of enterprise application software with implementation and
ongoing support services for Human Resource Management, Enterprise
Procurement Management, Enterprise Information Management and
Enterprise Retail Management (collectively the “Application Software”); and
(i) the Government Electronic Trading Services (“GETS”), cloud services,
business process outsourcing (“BPO”) services and other related value added
services (collectively the “e-Service and related business”).

@ The Group's Solutions and Integration Services business includes (i)
Development Services for the provision of IT solutions implementation
and application software development; (ii) Managed Services for the
provision of IT and related operation/infrastructure outsourcing services;
and (iii) Integration Services for the provision of IT systems and network
infrastructure with related design, implementation and on-going support
services.
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SEMNNNNMW®  Chairman’s Statement (continued)

EFEHEE)

Footnotes: (continued)
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The China Internet+ Industrial Innovation Development BBS 2018 was
organised by China Information Industry Association in April 2018, gathering
the country’s internet industry leaders, specialists, enterprises, associations,
etc. for in-depth discussion of the borderless internet+ era. The conference
also selected and awarded the leaders, enterprises, technologies, product
solutions and success cases that are influential to the internet+ market. The
Group’s HRMS won the “China Internet+ Most Influential HRM Software”
in recognition of the product’s excellent system design and mobile tech
integration.

As an annual recognition event for China’s financial industry, the 2018
China Economic Summit attracted nationwide political and trade leaders,
economists, entrepreneurs and more than 100 media. In the selection of
the “China’s Top 10 Innovation Brands: HR Industry”, the Group’s HRMS was
awarded in recognition of its strong industrial influence and outstanding
market performance.

Since 2004, the Group has been granted a license (the “GETS License”) from
the Government for the provision of front-end Government Electronic
Trading Services for processing certain official trade-related documents. The
Group’s GETS License was further renewed in early 2018 for operation of
additional six years until the end of 2024.

The Group’s BPO business comprises the provision of services for the
operations and support of specific business functions or processes of
customers.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue and gross profit

Benefited from the improved performance of both Application Software
and Solutions Services businesses, the Group’s overall turnover and gross
profit for the reporting period increased by 10.7% to HK$130.8 million
(2017: HK$118.2 million) and 15.0% to HK$73.3 million (2017: HK$63.7
million), respectively.

Non-operating incomes and gains, net (included other incomes and
gains, net, foreign exchange differences, net and fair value gains/
(losses), net)

Non-operating incomes and gains (included other incomes and gains,
net, foreign exchange differences, net, and fair value gains/(losses), net)
maintained at around HK$7.4 million (2017: HK$7.3 million). The change
was primarily due to a mix of the following matters.

VAT refund

In the absence of VAT refund for sales of software license in prior years,
the refund amount for the period was significantly dropped by 71.9% to
HK$0.9 million (2017: HK$3.2 million).

Interest income

Bank interest income increased by 102.5% to HK$3.2 million resulting
from the increase in amount of cash available for deposits and the
upward trend of the deposit rates being offered.

Fair value gain on investment properties, net

The continuous appreciation in an investment property held by the

Group contributed a fair value gain of HK$3.0 million (2017: HK$1.4
million) during the reporting period.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

EFEHEE)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Expenses

The Group’s overall expenses incurred were basically in line with same
period last year.

Income tax expense

Due to the increase in assessable profits and the absence of reversal of
tax provision, the income tax expense increased significantly by 141.9%
to HK$4.2 million (2017: HK$1.7 million) compared with same period last
year.

The Group’s overall effective tax rate in 2018 had been moved up to
12.2% from 7.0% in 2017. The effective tax rate was lower than the Hong
Kong statutory profits tax rate because several types of onshore incomes/
gain, including dividend, bank interest income and fair value gain from
the revaluation of an investment property, were not subject to the Hong
Kong profits tax. Moreover, the effective tax rate was further driven down
by the recognition of deferred tax credit arising from the amortisation of
other intangible assets.

Net profit

Profit for the period attributable to shareholders increased to HK$30.2
million (2017: HK$22.8 million) while the net profit margin (profit for the
period attributable to shareholders divided by the revenue) rose to 23.1%
(2017: 19.3%). The improvement was in line with the increase in gross
profit of the Group.

Non-current assets

The Group'’s non-current assets as at 30 June 2018 slightly increased by
1.3% to HK$270.1 million from HK$266.7 million as at 31 December 2017.
The change was primarily arrived after charging of amortisation of other
intangible assets and depreciation of property, plant and equipment and
addition of deferred development costs arising from a solution project,
appreciation of investment properties held and purchase of fixed assets
during the period.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Current assets

The Group's current assets as at 30 June 2018 rose by 11.2% to HK$379.8
million (31 December 2017: HK$341.4 million). The increment was mainly
caused by (i) the increase in cash and bank balances generated from the
business operations; (ii) the increase in trade receivable and amount due
from contract customers as there were more progress developments
billed and pending to be billed by end of June 2018; and (iii) the increase
in prepayments, deposits and other receivables due to a prepayment for
license support fee with support period starting from the second half of
the year.

The Group maintains strict control over its outstanding trade receivables
and considers that the trade receivables (net of impairment provision)
were all recoverable in the foreseeable future.

Current liabilities

The Group's current liabilities as at 30 June 2018 increased by 32.0% to
HK$184.7 million (31 December 2017: HK$139.9 million). The increase
was primarily due to the recognition of 2017 final and special dividends
as a liability and the recognition of deferred income from various
maintenance services to be provided by the Application Services and the
Solutions Services businesses.

Segment assets and liabilities

Segment assets of Applications Services business increased owing to the
increase in trade receivables and amount due from contract customers
while the segment liabilities of the business increased in line with the
increase in deferred revenue.

Segment assets of Solutions and Integration Services business increased
in line with the increase in deferred development costs, trade receivables,
prepayments, deposits and other receivables while the segment liabilities
increased in line with the increase in deferred revenue.

Segment assets of Investments business increased due to the
appreciation in value of an investment property held.

Equity

Total equity as at 30 June 2018 slightly decreased by 0.6% to HK$450.4
million (2017: HK$453.0 million). The change was mainly due to the profit
earned in first half of 2018 offset by the purchase of shares held under the
restricted share award scheme and the declaration of dividends payable
for 2017 final results in the annual general meeting held in May 2018.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

EFEmE(E

TREASURY POLICY

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policies and thus maintained a healthy liquidity
position throughout the period under review. The Group strives to reduce
exposure to credit risk by performing ongoing credit assessments and
evaluations of the financial status of its customers. To manage liquidity
risk, the Board closely monitors the Group’s liquidity position to ensure
that the liquidity structure of the Group’s assets, liabilities and other
commitments can meet its funding requirements from time to time.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 30 June 2018, the Group had pledged an investment property with
a fair value of HK$63.0 million (31 December 2017: HK$60.0 million),
listed debt and equity securities of HK$13.1 million (31 December 2017:
HK$13.4 million) and bank balances of HK$1.4 million (31 December
2017: HK$1.1 million) to secure certain general bank facilities including
guarantee/performance bonds facilities granted to the Group/subsidiaries
of the Company in aggregate of HK$106.8 million (31 December 2017:
HK$106.8 million) of which HK$22.6 million (31 December 2017: HK$20.5
million) have been utilised as at 30 June 2018.

FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

As at 30 June 2018, the Group’s bank balances and cash (excluded
pledged bank deposit of HK$1.4 million) was HK$258.9 million (31
December 2017: HK$246.5 million).

All of the Group’s on hand fundings are in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi
and US dollars. The Group has not adopted any hedging policies, as these
currencies carry relatively low exchange fluctuation risks. Nevertheless,
the Group had been monitoring the foreign exchange exposures closely
and hedging any significant foreign currency exposure in order to
minimise the exchange risk should the needs arose.

As at 30 June 2018, the Group had no bank borrowings (31 December
2017: Nil). The Group’s current ratio representing current assets divided
by current liability was 2.1 (31 December 2017: 2.4) and the gearing
ratio, representing total liabilities divided by total assets, was 30.7% (31
December 2017: 25.5%).
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REMUNERATION POLICY AND NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

The Group remunerates its employees based on their performance,
working experience and prevailing market conditions. Apart from basic
salary, discretionary bonus and other incentives are offered to employees
of the Group to reward their performance and contributions.

The remuneration policies adopted for the six months ended 30 June
2018 are consistent with those disclosed in the Group’s 2017 Annual
Report. As at 30 June 2018, the Group employed 331 full time employees
and 6 contract-based employees (31 December 2017: 327 full time
employees and 6 contract-based employees).

As at 30 June 2018, the Company operates a share option scheme and
a share award scheme for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to the employees who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations as well as retain them for the continual development of the
Group.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

Save as disclosed in the report, the Group has no significant investments
held as at 30 June 2018.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES

The Group did not have any material acquisition or disposal of
subsidiaries during the period and up to the date of this interim report.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

There was no specific plan for material investments or capital assets as at
30 June 2018.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Save as disclosed in the report, the Group has no material contingent
liabilities as at 30 June 2018.

INTERIM DIVIDEND

The Board declared the payment of an interim dividend of 9 HK cents (30
June 2017: an interim dividend of 7 HK cents and a special dividend of 3
HK cents) per ordinary share for the six months ended 30 June 2018.

T \FRHRE | HERGEEARAR
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

EFEmE(E

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from Wednesday,
5 September 2018 to Thursday, 6 September 2018, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to
qualify for the interim dividend, all transfers of shares accompanied by
the relevant share certificates and transfer forms must be lodged with the
Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited,
at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, for
registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 4 September 2018. The
dividend will be distributed on or about Friday, 21 September 2018 to
shareholders whose names appear on the Register of Members of the
Company on Thursday, 6 September 2018.

APPRECIATIONS

On behalf of the Board and the management, | would like to express our
sincere thanks to all employees, shareholders, customers and business
partners for their supports to the Group during the reporting period.

By order of the Board

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
Ng Cheung Shing

Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 August 2018
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Computer And Technologies
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) herein presents the unaudited
condensed consolidated interim results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the six months ended 30
June 2018, together with the comparative figures. These condensed
consolidated interim results have been reviewed by the Company’s audit
committee.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT
ORLOSS

BRRmEIRER

M RGEBBRAR([ARAESS
(TEFg)BUZNARRRENMBAE (5
BIAKEDBEE-_FT-N\FRAA=TAHLX
B Az REEZERAGE P HREERLR
#F o EMRARASTHEECKALRT]
BERERBEEH -

HRGREEER

For the six months ended 30 June

BEAA=1THILEAREA

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REE®R) (REEZEZ)
Notes HK$’000 HKS’000
BiaE FET FET
REVENUE WA 5 130,818 118,193
Cost of sales and services HE R RISAAR (57,563) (54,515)
Gross profit EF 73,255 63,678
Other income and gains, net H A e 58 5 4,637 5,101
Foreign exchange differences, net X =R 5 32 3
Fair value gains/(losses), net: ANFER(EIB)F5E
Financial assets at fair value through BEAFELESARK
profit or loss G EE (285) 738
Investment properties WEYE 3,000 1,440
Selling and distribution expenses HE MDY (16,197) (16,225)
General and administrative expenses, net  —#& & 1T BT H58 (27,063) (27,188)
Other expenses HEMAx (3,011) (3,011)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX RRBE AR R 6 34,368 24,536
Income tax expense FriSTiF = 7 (4,178) (1,727)
PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD BARHEE B
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS AR EA RS F
OF THE PARENT 30,190 22,809
EARNINGS PER SHARE BAREBRREEN
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY FREF
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT 9 HK cents &1 HK cents j& 11l
Basic VN 12.47 9.42
Diluted BE 12.45 9.39

T \FRHRE | HERGEEARAR
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AR S EE W E R

= (Condensed Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the six months ended 30 June

BEAA=tHILEAEA

2018 2017
A —T—tF
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REHEZR) (REEEZ)
HKS’000 HKS'000
FAETT FEIT
PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD A HA SR 30,190 22,809
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) HfttZEUW A~ (E5iE)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) RERERE - EtE2EEA S
to be reclassified to profit or (BER)BEHSEEERERE
loss in subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation of MEBINEGREA ZEH Z5R
foreign operations (1,463) 1,816
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR BAREE ABERERE
THE PERIOD ATTRIBUTABLE TO 2HEHIKRALLE
OWNERS OF THE PARENT 28,727 24,625

16

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited | Interim Report 2018



Condensed Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

= AE 4 A s
ERRAR S B ISk &k
30 June 31 December
2018 2017
—Z-N\f —EEF
ANA=tH +=ZH=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RE&ER) (fe=Z)
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Hiat FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERENEE
Property, plant and equipment VI - s MR AE 10 3,522 3,950
Investment properties TEMZE 11 74,255 71,255
Goodwill BE 12 134,485 134,485
Other intangible assets Hin B SR 13 50,970 49,706
Available-for-sale investment AEHERE 14 = 1,780
Financial assets at fair value through B AESER AR
profit or loss  ZOBEE 16 4,312 2,544
Deferred tax assets RIETIEEE 18 2,599 2,984
Total non-current assets JEMENEELE 270,143 266,704
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories AT 1,382 1,433
Trade receivables e 5 AR X 15 59,443 41,363
Prepayments, deposits and other TEIFIE - BE Rk
receivables H A Ul 5K I8 20,512 15,466
Due from contract customers RS K PR 19,122 16,276
Financial assets at fair value through B ESER AR
profit or loss ZHBEE 16 10,584 10,857
Tax recoverable ARGERIE 8,433 8,433
Pledged bank deposits EIRIRITER 1,411 1,071
Cash and cash equivalents ReEhERRSEE 258,902 246,547
Total current assets MEVEEAE 379,789 341,446
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade payables, other payables and FERTE SR - Hit
accruals R BIA K et 3B 17 100,870 74,274
Due to contract customers IS & KPR 25,685 20,407
Deferred revenue B A 45,582 35,969
Tax payable FEATIIR 12,543 9,285
Total current liabilities mEEERE 184,680 139,935
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 195,109 201,511
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HEERRBAR
LIABILITIES 465,252 468,215
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBEE
Deferred tax liabilities BERIA R E 18 14,883 15,247
Net assets BEFE 450,369 452,968
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to owners of the BAREE AEEER
parent
Issued capital ?*ﬁﬂx$ 24,419 24,419
Share premium account Hﬁf i {8 AR 38,493 38,493
Shares held under the restricted share @?ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%”ﬂx@ )
award scheme I R %) (4,478) (1,919)
Other reserves HivfE 391,935 362,879
Proposed final and special dividends BORARE R R B - 29,096
Total equity BrER 450,369 452,968

—N\ERHRE | B RGEEARAR
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
e RS B

Attributable to owners of the parent

BARER A
Other reserves
AfbGEe
Shares held Avalable-
under the Share- for-sale Proposed
Share  restricted based Asset  investment Exchange final and
Issued ~ premium share award payment  Goodwill  revaluation  revaluation Reserve  fluctuation Retained special Total
capital account scheme reserve reserve reserve reserve funds reserve profits ~ dividends equity
i
AR
TR [FS REAE
BEf Ry iEsE  RGER B8 EEEf  HERE e BN R RER
U Ak i3 i i &% EREE -5 G it RS EnER
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000
AT AT FET FET FET FET FET FET T AT AT AT
At 1 January 2017 R=5—t5-A-B %4419 38,493 (2447) 2,745 (1,227) 1972 m 73 (1,749) 359615 24207 441482
Profit for the period TR - = = = = = = = = 2809 = 2809
Other comprehensive income REREB2ERA
for the period:
Exchange differences on BERNERREEL
translation of foreign operations ExzE - - - - - - - - 1816 - - 1816
Total comprehensive income THERRERALE
for the period - - - - - - - - 1816 22809 - 24,625
Vesting of shares held under the BRARDREEET
restricted share award scheme RiAGE - - 260 (260) - - - - - = = =
Share award arrangements RS - - - 350 - - - - - - = 350
Transferred from retained ERBREER
profits - - - - - - - 13 - 13 - -
Final and special 2016 BR=F - ERER
dividends declared HhkE = - - - - - - - - Q0 (27 @420)
At30June 2017 RZE-tE~A=1H 24419 38493 (2187) 2,835 (1227) 19712 m 746 67 382391 - 442,230
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)

ERR SRR ER(E)

Attributable to owners of the parent

BRAEAARE
Other reserves
AfbiifE
Shares held Available-
under the Share- for-sale Proposed
Share  restricted based Asset  investment Exchange final and
Issued  premium shareaward  payment  Goodwill revaluation revaluation Reserve fluctuation  Retained special Total
capital account scheme reserve reserve reserve reserve funds reserve profits  dividends equity
it
AR#
RG%R At RIEAH

BEfF Bt HEEE  REAH BR  REEG  HERK i EXRE RE R
Bx  EEE ZBB G G i EfEER i Cid A B REAE
HES000  HKSO0D  HKSO00  HKSO0D  HKSO00  HKSO0D  HKSO00  HKSO0D  HKSO00  HKSO0D  HKS000  HK$000
FEr T FEr  TEr  FEr  TErn  FEr  TEn  FEr  TEn  TEr TEi

At 1 January 2018
Effect of adoption of new accounting
standard (Note 3.2)

At 1 January 2018
(restated)
Profit for the period
Other comprehensive loss
forthe period:
Exchange differences on
translation of foreign operations

Total comprehensive income
for the period
Purchase of shares held under the
restricted share award scheme
Vesting of shares held under the
restricted share award scheme
Share award arrangements
Final and special 2017
dividends declared

At30June 2018

RZZ2-)\&-f-H

seYE

R=2-)\5-A-H
(&3

AHREA

FEREBEERR

REBNERRELL
EiZR

AEREENALE

BEERGROZEHE
L)
ERHROZDHEAT
R EE
RiEERsE
~LERER
RHRE

E

RE-N\FRA=TH

UMY /4B (1919 2908 (L21)  19n 621 746 3271 360588 2909 452968
- - S - - - (621) - = 621 - S
UMY /A3 (1919 2908 (21)  19m s 746 3 361209 2909 452,968
- - 5 s 2 s s s - 3019 - 3019
= = 5 s 5 5 s - (1483 = - (463
- - 5 S = 2 2 - (48 3019 - ww
= - 5 2 2 2 2 = = - e
= = 252 (252) = 5 o s c = = 5
= = 5 01 5 5 5 S = = = 491

o o o o o o o o o 90 (29,096) (29,006)

2449 38,493 (4,478) 3147 (7.227) 1912 - 746 1,808 391,489 - 450,369

T \FRHRE | HERGEEARAR 19



Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BRGERERER

For the six months ended 30 June

HEAA=1THILAEA

2018 2017
—B-N\F —E—+F
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEER) (REEEZ)
Notes HK$’000 HKS’000
iz FET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETBHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax BRE A 8 7 34,368 24,536
Adjustments for: P
Bank interest income RITHBHA 5 (3,228) (1,594)
Dividend income from listed B ZRBWA
investments 5 (326) (314)
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEWE - BE R&EE
plant and equipment, net B 2 Ei8F5E 5 - 26
Fair value losses/(gains), net: RFEEE (W) FEE -
Financial assets at fair value through BATFELERARZ
profit or loss WEEE 285 (738)
Investment properties wEMZE (3,000) (1,440)
Depreciation e 6 1,320 1,431
Impairment of trade receivables FEWE B ERFORE 6 270 651
Reversal of impairment of trade Rl E 5 R FORE
receivables 6 (32) (34)
Amortisation of other intangible assets ~ E b 2 & E#E 6 3,011 3,011
Equity-settled share-based payment et EE AR Z AR
expense 6 491 350
33,159 25,885
Decrease/(increase) in inventories BFERL,(350) 51 (527)
Increase in trade receivables FEUN B 5 BR FRIE N (18,318) (7,186)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, TERFUR ~ B LHEM
deposits and other receivables FEMRIER A (35 40) (5,046) 758
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due AR FRERD
from contract customers (3 10) (2,846) 1,422
Decrease in trade payables, other FERTE SRR - HMERK
payables and accruals I8 M AT SRIA R (2,410) (9.222)
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to JEE R FREE N,
contract customers CRA) 5,278 (1,856)
Increase in deferred revenue IRIEW AIE BN 9,613 8,812
Cash generated from operations REXBAFHRS 19,481 18,086
Overseas taxes paid BHEUBIINGIR (943) (1,114)
Net cash flows from operating activities A& & EEFBIR &R EFEE 18,538 16,972
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

AR ERSNER ()

For the six months ended 30 June

BEAA=1THILEAREA

2018 2017
—g-NF  -—T-tF
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REgEZ)
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Net cash flows from operating activities KEERBMSReRnE R 18,538 16,972
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZEIZHRLSRKE
Bank interest received BUERITH B 3,228 1,594
Dividends received from listed investments B L& AR & 326 314
Purchases of items of property, plant and EEME  BEAXEIER
equipment (897) (553)
Additions to other intangible assets REEMELEE (4,275) -
Payment of acquisition consideration payable S5 fEfIEERE - (14,795)
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, HEMZE - BEREHIEE
plant and equipment FT{S3kIR 5 6
Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank deposits B2 IR TERUR A (& 0) (340) 1,690
Decrease in non-pledged bank deposits with BB RE 'JHH E BA=EAZ
original maturity of more than three months 4 HIRTFFUR
when acquired 46,847 44,920
Net cash flows from in investing activities KERBSReREFE 44,894 33,176
CASH FLOWS USED IN FINANCING METBFACRERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchase of shares under the restricted share & & &R $I i (0 1@ 2
award scheme =N ) (2,811) -
Dividends paid BfIRE - (24,227)
Net cash flows used in financing activities BEEBFTA RS REFRE (2,811) (24,227)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH RERERRESEE 2 IEMFHE
EQUIVALENTS 60,621 25,921
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of BB MERBESEE
period 198,700 170,393
Effects of foreign exchange rate changes, net  [E R & &) » /2 5% (1,419) 1,708
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTSATENDOF MR CHERZEREEE
PERIOD 257,902 198,022
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND RERERREEEERIN
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the ARG MR KIS
condensed consolidated statement of NERBSEE
financial position 258,902 212,113
Non-pledged time deposits with original WHERREIEIR BB =EH 2
maturity of more than three months when IR B R
acquired (1,000) (14,091)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the BRGEHRSRERAN T
condensed consolidated statement of cash RehZERREEE
flows 257,902 198,022

—N\ERHRE | B RGEEARAR
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS AR AR B

Six months ended 30 June 2018 &HZ=—ZF— \F/Ss A =+ H 1L/ @A

3.1

22

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited is a limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office of the
Company is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM11, Bermuda. The principal place of business of the Company is
located at Level 10, Cyberport 2, 100 Cyberport Road, Hong Kong.

During the period, the Group was involved in the following principal
activities:

. provision of enterprise applications software and related
services, business process outsourcing, e-business, and related
maintenance services;

. provision of system and network integration, information
technology (“IT") solutions development and implementation,
and related maintenance services; and

. property and treasury investments.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

This unaudited condensed consolidated interim financial
information of the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2018 has
been prepared in accordance with the applicable provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited and Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS")
34 “Interim Financial Reporting” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”").

The unaudited condensed consolidated interim financial
information does not include all the information and disclosures
required in the annual financial statements, and should be read in
conjunction with the Group’s annual financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2017.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the
unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial information
are consistent with those followed in the preparation of the Group’s
annual financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017,
except for the adoption of the following new and revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (which also included
HKASs and Interpretations) that affect the Group and are adopted
for the first time for the current period’s financial statements.

3.1

RAREEER

BE RS EBBR AR DR B SR EE M
BN 2 BRR AR - H a3 S R A R
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM11, Bermuda ° N2 5] £ B & b 27
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
ISR MIEE (&)

Six months ended 30 June 2018 /= =& — \F/x A=+ H L/~ A A

3.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

3.2 B BRRRBREZEH

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for

REE D RN < #7% Wk B IR

the first time for the current period’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Amendments to HKFRS 15  Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue from

PATHET RARERT 2 B B S 2R -

Contracts with Customers

Amendments to HKAS 40  Transfers of Investment Property

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration
Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKFRS 1 and HKAS 28

HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Except for HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 as further explained below, the
adoption of the above new and revised standards has had no
significant financial effect on these financial statements.

As further explained below, HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 were generally
adopted by the Group without restating comparative information.
As a result of the changes in the Group’s accounting policies, certain
reclassifications and adjustments are therefore not reflected in the
restated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017, but
are recognised in the opening statement of financial position on 1
January 2018.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRMFE(E)

Six months ended 30 June 2018 &HZ=—ZF— \F/Ss A =+ H 1L/ @A

3.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

The following table shows the adjustments recognised for each
individual line item. Line items that were not affected by the
changes have not been included. The adjustments are explained in

more detail below.

Condensed consolidated statement

3.2 B EERRBE 2S5 (H)

TRINFABIBIIRAERNHE -
BEXEHTENEE AL EFA - TY
B AN R LR EE

Balance at
31 December Balance at
2017 Re-classification 1 January
as originally due to 2018
presented HKFRS 9 Restated
RZIZ—t%
t=A=t-H RRAERE R-B-NF

& MBBRSERN -A-B&H

of financial position (extract) HRGRE M ERR R (HR) (MBE5) HHEHIE (BE3iR5)

HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000

FAT FIBT FBT

Available-for-sale investment AHHERE 1,780 (1,780) =
Financial assets at fair value through BRATESERARY

profit or loss NBEE 2,544 1,780 4324
Available-for-sale investment At ER A SR

revaluation reserve 621 (621) -

Retained profits RER G 360,588 621 361,209

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments replaces HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement for annual periods
on or after 1 January 2018, bringing together all three aspects
of the accounting for financial instruments: classification and
measurement; impairment; and hedge accounting. The Group has
applied HKFRS 9 with the initial application date of 1 January 2018.
The Group did not restate comparative information and recognised
the transition adjustments against the opening balance of equity at
1 January 2018. The effects of adopting HKFRS 9 are summarised as

follows:

(a) Classification and measurement

Under HKFRS 9, debt financial instruments are subsequently
measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), amortised
cost, or fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI). The classification is based on two criteria: the Group's
business model for managing the assets; and whether the
instruments’ contractual cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding

(the “SPPI criterion”).
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Six months ended 30 June 2018 (&= =%

3.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

(a)

(b)

Classification and measurement (continued)

The assessment of the Group’s business model was made as of
the date of initial application, 1 January 2018. The assessment
of whether contractual cash flows on debt instruments are
solely comprised of principal and interest was made based on
the facts and circumstances as at the initial recognition of the
assets.

The classification and measurement requirements of HKFRS
9 did not have a significant impact to the Group. The Group
continued measuring at fair value all financial assets previously
held at fair value under HKAS 39. Investment in a club
membership debenture previously classified as available-for-
sale investment is now classified and measured as a financial
asset at fair value through profit or loss. The available-for-
sale investment revaluation reserve of HK$621,000 related
to the investment in a club membership debenture that was
previously presented under accumulated other comprehensive
income, was reclassified to retained profits as at 1 January
2018.

There are no changes in classification and measurement for
the Group’s financial liabilities.

Impairment

The adoption of HKFRS 9 has fundamentally changed the
Group's accounting for impairment losses for financial assets
by replacing HKAS 39’s incurred loss approach with a forward-
looking expected credit loss (ECL) approach. HKFRS 9 requires
the Group to recognise an allowance for ECLs for all debt
instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss and
contract assets. The Group has applied the standard simplified
approach and has calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The
Group has established a provision matrix that is based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
conditions.

The Group has determined that there is no significant impact
on the provision for impairment upon the initial adoption of
the standard.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
ISR PIEE ()

Six months ended 30 June 2018 &HZ=—ZF— \F/Ss A =+ H 1L/ @A

3.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

26

DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 supersedes HKAS 11 Construction Contracts, HKAS 18
Revenue and related Interpretations and it applies, with limited
exceptions, to all revenue arising from contracts with customers.
HKFRS 15 establishes a five-step model to account for revenue
arising from contracts with customers and requires that revenue be
recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or
services to a customer.

HKFRS 15 requires entities to exercise judgement, taking into
consideration all of the relevant facts and circumstances when
applying each step of the model to contracts with their customers.
The standard also specifies the accounting for the incremental costs
of obtaining a contract and the costs directly related to fulfilling a
contract. In addition, the standard requires extensive disclosures.

The Group adopted HKFRS 15 using the modified retrospective
method of adoption with the date of initial application of 1 January
2018. Under this method, the standard can be applied either to all
contracts at the date of initial application or only to contracts that
are not completed at this date. The Group elected to apply the
standard to all contracts as at 1 January 2018.

The cumulative effect of initially applying HKFRS 15 is recognised
at the date of initial application as an adjustment to the opening
balance of retained profits. Therefore, the comparative information
was not restated and continues to be reported under HKAS 18 and
related Interpretations.

The Group has assessed its performance obligations under its
arrangements pursuant to HKFRS 15 and has concluded that the
adoption of HKFRS 15 does not have a significant impact and thus,
no adjustment was made to the opening balance of retained profits
at 1 January 2018.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

I ERRME(E)

Six months ended 30 June 2018 /= =& — \F/x A=+ H L/~ A A

3.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial
statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation’
Amendments to HKFRS 10  Sale or Contribution of Assets between
and HKAS 28 (2011) an Investor and its Associate or Joint

Venture®

HKFRS 16 Leases’

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?

Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement’

Amendments to HKAS 28  Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures'

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments'

Annual Improvements to Amendments to a number of HKFRSs'

HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

3 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact
of the new and revised HKFRSs upon initial application but is not yet
in a position to state whether these new and revised HKFRSs would
have a significant impact on the Group’s result of operations and
financial position.

T \FRHRE | HERGEEARAR

3.3 CHEMEERERZEBMHR

HEA

7R g B A A b S S R A TR
FEAG L1442 2 35T R A 3T B Bt
g -

BEMBRERARSE AARBEZSENELHIL
(B31%)

EEMBRERAE0N REZHABPEALELFE
REBEHENENS,  ZAHRELELTR
(ZF——F)(BFTX)

FEMBREENR 16 HE

ERMBREEARIR  REAAP

EBERHERS193 TR R AR

(B31%)
BB GRHER 283 REERAREEERIR
(B31%) il

EE(EBUBRERE  FIFREENTEE
ZEg)-RBEBE  AF

ZE-FFE-FF YHHBEBUEREENE
BH BB EHE 2B
EOIFEE

U RZE-NF-A-RHZEKFEBRZF
[EERE AR

2 RIE-—F-A-BHRZRFABZF
[EE AR

S HAREERBIE B - AR

AEBMBRERAEFNR] REBTEEY
EERE RN B RN 2 L EETTRT
ff - R ARBEREE L FHR] REERTE
B BRELENELHARERLLEE
REBHARELEEATE °

27



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
ISR PIEE ()

Six months ended 30 June 2018 &HZ=—ZF— \F/Ss A =+ H 1L/ @A

4.

28

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on their products and services and has three reportable
operating segments as follows:

(@) the application services segment that primarily engages in
the provision of enterprise applications software and related
operation outsourcing, business process outsourcing and
e-business, and related maintenance services;

(b) the integration and solutions services segment that
primarily engages in the sales of computer networks and
system platforms, and the provision of system and network
integration, IT solutions development and implementation,
and related maintenance services; and

(c) the investments segment that primarily engages in various
types of investing activities including, inter alia, property
investment for rental income and/or for capital appreciation
and treasury investment in securities for dividend income and
interest income and/or for capital appreciation.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit,
which is a measure of adjusted profit before tax. The adjusted
profit before tax is measured consistently with the Group’s profit
before tax except that unallocated interest income, unallocated
foreign exchange differences, net, corporate and other unallocated
depreciation, corporate and other unallocated expenses are
excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, tax recoverable,
pledged bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents, and other
unallocated head office and corporate assets as these assets are
managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude tax payable, deferred tax liabilities and
other unallocated head office and corporate liabilities as these
liabilities are managed on a group basis.

There were no material intersegment sales and transfers during the
current and prior periods.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

I ERRME(E)

Six months ended 30 June 2018 /= =& — \F/x A=+ H L/~ A A

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(a) Operating segments

Integration and
Application Services Solutions Services Investments Total
JE Rk SHRBR LR K& ]
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
Z8-0\f Z-tf ZB-Nf E-tE ZB-N\E 55 ZB-\f 5%
(Unaudited) ~ (Unaudited) (Unaudited)  (Unaudited) (Unaudited)  (Unaudited) (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)
(REER) (REER) (REER)  (REER)  (REER)  (REER)  (REER)  (REER)
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS000
FEr AT FEr AT FEr AT FEr AT
Segment revenue: PHRA
Sales to external customers  SEE FHNREE 76,645 69,584 52,756 47346 1417 1,263 130,818* 118,193*
Otherincomeand gains, net  EfA R %8 1,082 3219 - (26) 3 314 1,409' 3507
Total &t A 72,803 52,756 47320 1,744 1577 132 121,700
Segment results AHEE 26,450 25851 15,045 8319 4147 3,364 45,642 37,534
Reconciliation: %
Unallocated interestincome & ARCK|EHA 328" 1,504'
Unallocated foreign exchange 7 E % ZE 55
differences, net 32 3
Corporate and other PEREBANERE
unallocated depreciation (885) (934)
Corporate and other PEREBANERR
unallocated expenses (13,649) (13,661)
Profit before tax Nyl 34368 24536

* This represents the consolidated revenue of HK$130,818,000 (2017:
HKS$118,193,000) in the condensed consolidated statement of profit
orloss.

These comprise the consolidated other income and gains, net, of
HKS$4,637,000 (2017: HKS5,101,000) in the condensed consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

T \FRHRE | HERGEEARAR
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRMFE(E

Six months ended 30 June 2018 &HZ=—ZF— \F/Ss A =+ H 1L/ @A

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

(a) Operating segments (continued)

4. REDHER(H)

(a) BEZHR)

Integration and
Application Services Solutions Services Investments Total
i LI ES S RE it
30June 31 December 30June 31 December 30June 31 December 30June 31 December
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
“BtE I ZEtF ZEtF
5N\ tZA ZB-NF ToA CZE-NE ToA ZE-NE t2A
~B=tR =t-A A~B=tR =t-A A~A=tR =t-A A~A=tR =1-A
(Unaudited) (Audited)  (Unaudited) (Audited)  (Unaudited) (Audited) ~ (Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER)  (@F%) (REBEK)  (FF0) (REER)  (FER) (REER) (G0
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS'000
FEr AT FEr AT FEr AT FEr AT
Segment assets AHEE 213,453 209,600 70,782 4740 90,041 87,349 374,276 344371
Reconcilation: o
Corporate and other PXRAMKD AR
unallocated assets 275,656 263,779
Total assets BEGE 649,932 608,150
Segment liabilities AHEE 93,469 87,935 45,229 34230 813 936 139,51 123,101
Reconciliation: %
Corporate and other PEREMAIEAE
unallocated liabilties 60,052 32,081
Total liabilties BlESE 199,563 155,182
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(a) Operating segments (continued)

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
ISR MIEE (&)

Six months ended 30 June 2018 /= =& — \F/x A=+ H L/~ A A

Integration and
Application Services Solutions Services Investments Total
EREHR SRRBARRRE k& g
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 217
“$-\F SFtF B\ SF0F B\ I S8\ SIf
(Unaudited) ~ (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)
(REEgh) (REER)  (REER)  (REER)  (REBR)  (REsn)  (REER)  (REsw)
HKs'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKs'000 HK$'000 HKs'000 HK$'000 HKs'000
71 FAT 71 FAT 71 7T 71 TAT
Other segment information: ~ £ASFEH -
Net fairvalue gains on RENENTENE
investment properties 8 - - - = 3,000 1,440 3,000 1,440
Net fairvalue gains/losses) on ~ RATERERAEZ
financia assetsatfirvalue ~ HREELATENE/
through profit orloss (BR)3E - - - - (285) 738 (285) 738
Amortsation of other intangible S0 ZEZ
assets 30M 30M = = - - 3,01 3011
Depreciation e m B 145 157 17 7 435 497
Corporate and other unallocated %R £ 67 ARAE
depreciation 885 934
1320 1431
Impairment losses recognisedin 5B ABER
the condensed consolidated B2 7 FEE BT
statement of profit or loss, net* 238 617 - - - - 238 617
Capital expenditure™ ERRRH 755 126 4299 1 - - 5,054 138
Corporate and other unallocated 3 REHFATER
capital expenditure Hx 118 415
5112 553
* Including impairment losses recognised in the condensed * BIERE L & 18 20 & BT HE R

consolidated statement of profit or loss attributable to the
application services segment of HK$270,000 (2017: HKS651,000)
and impairment losses reversed in the condensed consolidated
statement of profit or loss attributable to the application services

segment of HK$32,000 (2017: HK$34,000).

**  Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and

equipment and other intangible assets.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
ISR PIEE ()

Six months ended 30 June 2018 &HZ=—ZF— \F/Ss A =+ H 1L/ @A

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REFIER(E)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Geographical information (b) HEER
(i) Revenue from external customers (i) REHNSREFZKA
Hong Kong
and other
countries/regions Mainland China Total
FEREMER HE HEIRt am
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

“E-\f T+t ZEB-\Ff —T—+tF ZB-N\f —T+F
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEER) (REER) (REER) (REFR) (REBER) (REFER)
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET FET FET FET

Segment revenue: AHUWA
Sales to external customers  $HEFINREF 100,024 88,630 30,794 29563 130,818 118,193
The revenue information is based on the location of the WABR T AR E et A
customers. A4 o
(i) Non-current assets (i) HREEE
30 June 31 December
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
NA=+H +=ZA=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (EZ)
HKS’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Hong Kong B 122,097 115,465
Mainland China R A 3, 141,135 143,931
263,232 259,396
The non-current asset information is based on the IEMBEEER NIREEFE
locations of assets and excludes financial instruments and W25 ERWRET LB T
deferred tax assets. B RREERIAEE ©
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

I ERRME(E)

Six months ended 30 June 2018 /= =& — \F/x A=+ H L/~ A A

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(c) Information about major customers

Revenues from an external customer individually amounting
to 10% or more of the Group's total revenue:

For the period ended 30 June 2018, revenue from a major
customer of HK$34,182,000 was derived from the application
services segment and the integration and solutions services
segment.

For the period ended 30 June 2017, revenue from a major
customer of HK$30,893,000 was derived from the application
services segment and the integration and solutions services
segment.

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET

Revenue represents the aggregate of the invoiced value of
goods sold, net of trade discounts, returns and sales related tax,
where applicable; fees earned from the provision of enterprise
applications software, related operation outsourcing, business
process outsourcing, e-business, system and network integration,
IT solutions development and implementation and related services;
fees earned from the provision of maintenance services; gross rental
income earned from investment properties; and interest income
earned from treasury investments during the period.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
I ERARMIFE (A2

Six months ended 30 June 2018 &HZ=—ZF— \F/Ss A =+ H 1L/ @A

34

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 5. WA - Hg AR W FEE(E)
(CONTINUED)
An analysis of revenue, other income and gains, net is as follows: WA~ bl A R FRB AT ¢

For the six months ended 30 June

BEAA=+tHLEAEAR

2018 2017
—E-N\#F —E—+F
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RE&ER) (RE&EZ)
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Revenue 'ON
Provision of enterprise applications software  F2 1> Z & FH B+ N #ERE <18
and related operation outsourcing, SNH -~ ZEFSRARIN K
business process outsourcing and B E 5 RIBLAKIERE
e-business, and related maintenance RERK
services 76,645 69,584
Sales of computer networks and system HEBHPEBRESTE - UK
platforms, and the provision of system RERFREEEKRY - &
and network integration, IT solutions B ERA T RER KB
development and implementation, and RABBARERSS
related maintenance services 52,756 47,346
Gross rental income from investment WEYE AW REE RER
properties and interest income from REZFBKA
treasury investments 1,417 1,263
130,818 118,193
Other income and gains, net Htn AR W F 58
Tax refund received EBE 904 3,218
Bank interest income HRITHEWA 3,228 1,594
Dividend income from listed investments EHigEZREBA 326 314
Loss on disposal of items of property, plant  HEWE - BE MREEE
and equipment, net 2 B85 5 - (26)
Others Hith 179 1
4,637 5,101
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Six months ended 30 June 2018 /= =& — \F/x A=+ H L/~ A A

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. BRBLADGA
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): ANERE 2 BRFADE AR (GEA) T
P& I

For the six months ended 30 June

BEAA=+tHLEAEAR

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REBFEZR) (REEEZ)
HK$’000 HKS'000
FAETT FEIT

Cost of inventories sold BHEFERA 28,637 27,088

Cost of services provided B IR RIS A 28,917 27,419

Depreciation* s 1,320 1,431

Amortisation of other intangible assets** A& i 3,011 3,011

Minimum lease payments under operating ~ iRIEA S E 2 HIKMEE B

leases 3,334 3,331
Employee benefit expense™: EERAIF !
Wages, salaries and allowances TE - HekEhh 58,844 56,352
Equity-settled share-based payment REFEE RN AR
expense 491 350
Retirement benefit scheme contributions BRI FET S
(defined contribution schemes) (EEEHRETED) 2,878 2,759
Less: Amount capitalised in other R REMEEEEERNE
intangible assets 2 & (3,063) =
59,150 59,461

Impairment of trade receivables FEUNE SRR FURE 270 651

Reversal of impairment of trade receivables [0 UL B F R ZORE (32) (34)

* Depreciation for the period of HKS9,000 (2017: HK$8,000) is included in * HIA# 89,0005 0 ( —ZE—14F 8,000
“Cost of sales and services” on the face of the condensed consolidated BT )MA BBt E Bk 2 #HE KRR
statement of profit or loss. A A -

*  Amortisation of other intangible assets for the period of HK$3,011,000 w HIA B it 45 & EE 53,011,000/ T
(2017: HKS3,011,000) is included in “Other expenses” on the face of the (ZZFE—+14F : 3011,000% ) WA FF
condensed consolidated statement of profit or loss. BAtra 1Bam k2 [ BB A -

. Inclusive of research and development cost for application software . BB FE B E m AT R BT AR
products of HK$6,859,000 (2017: HK$4,087,000). 6,859,000, 7T ( —F—+4F : 4,087,000

L) o

# Inclusive of an amount of HK$28,917,000 (2017: HK$27,419,000) classified # BIFS MR LA EIEHRBEA A2

under “Cost of services provided” above. 2 528,917,0008 r ( = F —+ F :

27,419,000;%7T) °
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Six months ended 30 June 2018 &HZ=—ZF— \F/Ss A =+ H 1L/ @A

7.

36

INCOME TAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (six
months ended 30 June 2017: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable
profits arising in Hong Kong during the period. Taxes on profits
assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax
prevailing in the countries/jurisdictions in which the Group

operates.

Frig®t

EBFNEHIBRBEABEARE S EE
ZIAETER TR M E165% (HET
—tFRA=ZTHIEAMEA : 16.5%) 1
R o B[R R R 2RI T
BEAEBRKLERTERR, B A
RiZEAHETE -

For the six months ended 30 June

BEAA=tHILEAER

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RE&ER) (RE&EZ)
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Current - Hong Kong BNER— &/

Charge for the period HAZ T 3,152 2,433

Current - Elsewhere BVER— E fib it [
Charge for the period BRI 936 744
Under/(over)provision in prior years TEED /(%) REE 119 (8)
Deferred IR (29) (1,442)
Total tax charge for the period ATIES HAEE 4,178 1,727
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I ERRME(E)

Six months ended 30 June 2018 /= =& — \F/x A=+ H L/~ A A

8. DIVIDENDS

a. Subsequent to the end of the interim period, the Board has
determined that an interim dividend of 9 HK cents (2017:
an interim dividend of 7 HK cents and a special dividend of
3 HK cents) in cash per ordinary share should be paid to the
shareholders of the Company whose names appear in the
Register of Members on Thursday, 6 September 2018.

b.  Dividends attributable to the previous financial year approved
during the interim period.

3=\

a. MNTHHHEERE  EFERE
MR =ZT—N\FNALANB(EHM)
A5 RRAM 2 AR F) L BRARER
LAZR &R 5 AR BA AR B AR 9B (=
T—+F  FHRE7EILRER
fEE378ML) »

b. P EAHARERLE L FEM B FE
ZHR

For the six months ended 30 June

BEAA=tHLEAEAR

2018 2017
—E-N\F —ZE—tF
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RE&ER) (RE&EZ)
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FEr
Final and special dividends in respect AR BRI 2 B (A
of the previous financial year approved MHFE 2R R
during the interim period of HK$0.12 FE Rl B & AT A% 0.12
(2017: final and special BIL(ZE—+F KRB
dividends of HK$0.10) per ordinary share = 3IIf%.8.0.10%7T) 29,303 24,420
Less: Dividend for shares held underthe i - {RIEARRQRIBREHIH
Company's restricted share award HEETEIFRE 2R D
scheme FrigAR 2 (297) (193)
29,006 24,227

At the Board meeting held on 13 March 2018, the board of directors
recommended the payment of a final dividend of 7 HK cents and a
special dividend of 5 HK cents per ordinary share of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2017 (the “2017 Dividends”) by
way of cash, with a scrip dividend alternative. The 2017 Dividends
were approved at the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 23 May 2018 and were payable to shareholders of the Company
whose names appeared on the register of members of the Company
on 30 May 2018. Accordingly, a liability of HK$29,006,000 had been
recognised as at 30 June 2018. Further details of the 2017 Dividends
were set out in the Company’s circulars dated 20 April 2018 and 12
June 2018. The 2017 Dividends were paid and/or despatched on 11
July 2018.

T \FRHRE | HERGEEARAR

RZZE-N\FZAFT+=ZARTNESY
gL EEoEaURSFAEER
LB 7 B R B IR B AR S AL R A+
ARAREHE-ZE—+F+=-A=+—8
FFEZRE([ZZ— &8 )M
PR EER. —E—+FRER-Z
—NERAZT+=BETHEQFRE
BFRe TEGRAYEKRNTR_-Z
—N\FRA=+HZINARBREEM
F2ARERE - At - RZZTE—N\F
NA=18 - HEIFIE29,006,00075 T E
WHAREBE  —E—tERENES
HBEERERARRBHA T \FN
AZ+AkZ_ZE—-NFA+-_HZRE
e —E—+tFRBEEN_ZE—\Ft
At+—AZf Rk HEFE -
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Six months ended 30 June 2018 &HZ=—ZF— \F/Ss A =+ H 1L/ @A

9. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of basic earnings per share amounts is based on
the profit for the period attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the parent, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
of 242,056,126 (2017: 242,137,734) in issue during the period, as
adjusted to exclude the shares held under the restricted share
award scheme of the Company.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share amounts is based on
the profit for the period attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the parent. The weighted average number of ordinary shares used
in the calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue during
the period, as used in the basic earnings per share calculation,
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares assumed to
have been issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise or
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares granted under
the share option schemes of the Company and the deemed vesting
of all dilutive restricted shares of the Company awarded under the
restricted share award scheme of the Company into ordinary shares.

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based
on:

Earnings

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per shares are based
on profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent.

BRAEERRRELGERER

EREAREFSREIRES AR EER
Hx%FEfEKHﬁFEJ/mﬂ&HﬁWE%&TTE
Muﬁéﬂ?iﬁ%zzuoss1269x<_§ +
F 1 242,137,7340R)ETE - WL HIBRAR
ﬁTﬂ‘ﬁE%IJHﬁfﬁiﬁﬁb?r%ﬂlﬁi?ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁfﬁf’ﬁ

BREERNSHEIRES AR EEK
BREHEAMEGNGE - SHEAAZ
BARINEFESB AT EERERERF
FAZBAEETEBRREE - UK
Z“W%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ BB AR 8IR T

BEEEERREG/EITERLR
%v%&ﬁ%ﬁ@ﬂﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁ@ﬁ
IR 2 FrA B R A IR I A0 1
BIEREBR - AAREREETAET
2 EBBINEF O -

AAEEREARLE RN PTRBENT

87

BREAREERAIZF AR EBK
PR BRI E -

Number of shares

RAEE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —tF
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (RgeEZ)
Shares Hﬁfﬁ
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 5T & & I E A 2 % BT A BRI
in issue during the period used in BB TE AR T a8
the basic earnings per share calculation 242,056,126 242,137,734
Effect of dilution — weighted average number 558 5728 — @ AL ANkEF 15 &1 -
of ordinary shares:
Restricted shares awarded under the RIBEAR DB H RS 228D
Company's restricted share award FTEIR 2 AR SIS
scheme 490,360 729,420
242,546,486 242,867,154

38
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10. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B RS ERRMIEE (&

Six months ended 30 June 2018 /= =& — \F/x A=+ H L/~ A A

10. 9% - BERRE

30 June 31 December

2018 2017

—EB-N\F —E—+tF

AR=tH +=A=t—H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REFER) (Fe&E%)

HK$’000 HKS'000

FET FAET

Net carrying amount, at 1 January R—AH—A8 ' REFE 3,950 5,860
Additions NE 897 914
Disposals (net book value) L& (BREE) (5) (34)
Depreciation provided during the period/year 2,/ & R & 5 (1,320) (2,833)
Exchange realignment b 5 8 B - 43

Net carrying amount, at 30 June/ WARA=+8B/+=A
31 December =+—A8  RE¥E 3,522 3,950
11. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 1. REW*

30June 31 December

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+F

AA=+RA +ZA=+—H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REEZ) (&%)

HK$’000 HKS'000

F#ET FET

Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—A ' REEAE 71,255 67,665
Net gains from fair value adjustments NV ERR 2 W F 3,000 3,590

Carrying amount, at 30 June/31 December WARA=+8/+=A

=+—H kEE 74,255 71,255
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Six months ended 30 June 2018 &HZ=—ZF— \F/Ss A =+ H 1L/ @A

12.

13.

40

GOODWILL 12. HE
HKS'000
FEIT
31 December 2017 —E—+tH+=-H=1+—H
Cost and carrying amount at 1 January 2017 N_ZE—tF-—HA—BRZZFT—LF
and 31 December 2017 + - A=+—HRKAKMREE 134,485
30 June 2018 —E-N\FEXA=1H
Cost and carrying amount at 1 January 2018 A_ZE-N\F-—A—BRZZF-N\F
and 30 June 2018 NAZTAERARREE 134,485
OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 13. Hith B EE
Deferred
development Customer
costs* relationships Software Total
IEFE B 2 B Ak * EFER% B4 #at
HK$’000 HK$’000 HKs’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
30June 2018 —E-N\FEXA=TH
Cost at 1 January 2018, R_ZE-N\F-A—RZ
net of accumulated amortisation BCAR - HIBR REHEEE R
and impairment BB 4,127 10,634 34,945 49,706
Additions NE 4,275 - - 4,275
Amortisation provided during B SR
the period - (827) (2,184) (3,011)
At 30 June 2018 RZE—\FRA=TH 8,402 9,807 32,761 50,970
At 30 June 2018 RZZ—-\FXA=TH
Cost B 21,428 14,767 43,681 79,876
Accumulated amortisation and RO E
impairment (13,026) (4,960) (10,920) (28,906)
Net carrying amount REFE 8,402 9,807 32,761 50,970
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Six months ended 30 June 2018 /= =& — \F/x A=+ H L/~ A A

13. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 13. EtbEREEE (&)
Deferred
development Customer
costs* relationships Software Total
EREFEE A AR * BRHAR B #5
HKS000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS000
FET FET FET T
31 December 2017 —2—+&+=A
=+-H
Cost at 1 January 2017, A—E—+F—H—H
net of accumulated amortisation 7 AKA - Hfk Z5t
and impairment B ORE - 12,290 39,313 51,603
Additions NE 4,127 - - 4,127
Amortisation provided during NFE RS
the year - (1,656) (4,368) (6,024)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+=A
=+—H 4,127 10,634 34,945 49,706
At 31 December 2017 RZZE—tF+=A
=t+—H
Cost B#N 17,153 14,767 43,681 75,601
Accumulated amortisation and REHEEORE
impairment (13,026) (4,133) (8,736) (25,895)
Net carrying amount AREFE 4,127 10,634 34,945 49,706
*  During the period, additions of other intangible assets of HK$4,275,000 * By - BB TE & E R E 4,275,000
(31 December 2017: HK$4,127,000) were developed internally. B (—E—+E+=—H=+—H :

4,127,000;87T )5 H1 A ESFT

14. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT 14. IR HERE
30 June 31 December
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
ARA=tHR +ZH=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REBFEZR) (fe==:Z)
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FEIT
Club membership debenture, at fair value RATEFEZEMEREES - 1,780
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15. TRADE RECEIVABLES

An aging analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of provisions, is

15. BWE 5 R

REGRPFELEER - BKEBRXRH
FRHIN MR EEHZ REDTAT

42

as follows:
30 June 31 December
2018 2017
—B-N\F —T—+F
ANA=+HA +=ZH=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REFEZR) (fe=:Z)
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FEIT
Within 1 month —REAR 45,021 29,190
1 to 3 months —Z=={@A 8,949 9,366
4 to 6 months < ME A 2,286 1,084
7 to 12 months +t=+=f@A 3,187 1,723
59,443 41,363

For system integration projects and the provision of maintenance
services and software development services, the Group’s trading
terms with its customers vary from contract to contract or
depending on the specific arrangements with individual customers,
and may include cash on delivery, advance payment and on credit.
For those customers who trade on credit, the overall credit period
is generally within 90 days, except for certain projects with longer
implementation schedules where the period may extend beyond
90 days, or may be extended for major or specific customers. The
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding trade
receivables and overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over these balances. Trade receivables are non-
interest-bearing.

LR FERKIR B A RIR R IR TS S 2K
HFRERBME - ARE X5 ERA
FEMERIE AR T RER TP 2 Fhl %
HEmE - AIREBREE RN - LMK
KRR - LA FARREETRR S 2
EPMmE  BREEH-—HKRTZRN0
X HEMETHEERIHERE - BIEE
HIRMIER 2 HEBI0K » ATt = B alsF
EEPEREEH - AEBE—HEBE
PEREEZREKESERN  SREE
B EEHaMTRGR - AREY
B SERTATMERRSRIELE
MEENEEE - BREEZRRILTE
FE o
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Six months ended 30 June 2018 /= =& — \F/x A=+ H L/~ A A

16. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 16. RATFEREBESZARZUKEE
PROFIT OR LOSS

30 June 31 December

2018 2017

—E-N\#F —F—+tF

ANA=+H +=ZH=+—H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REEZR) (KeEZ)

HKS’000 HKS$000

FET FET

Debt investments, at market value BMEFE 2 EFRE 4,312 2,544
Listed equity investments, at market value ~ ZTH{EFTE 2 FHRARE 10,584 10,857
14,896 13,401
Portion classified as current assets DEERHEELD (10,584) (10,857)
Portion classified as non-current assets DERIEREBEELLD 4,312 2,544

The debt investments were designated upon initial recognition
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as they are
managed and their performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with a documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the investments is provided
internally on that basis to the Group’s key management personnel.

The listed equity investments were all included under current assets
at 30 June 2018 and 31 December 2017 and were classified as held

EMERIRE DRIERE B R E R R
BRI A FEEEEE NFFHRA
B VIRFER R B E AR A TFERLIR
s ARZHMBEE MERZFREZ
ERDREREENASEZ T EEE
AB Rt -

ETRARARH AR ZE—N\F A
=+ER-F—+E+-A=+-AZ

for trading. MEEE  WHEARBIEEE -
17. TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND 17. EHESERN - HttEARER
ACCRUALS PESH IR
30 June 31 December
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
RA=tH +ZA=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (fe==:Z)
HK$’000 HKS$000
FET FET
Trade payables BB SRR 28,139 25,306
Other payables E A e FRIE 30,409 29,874
Accruals FEETFIR 13,316 19,094
2017 Dividends payable to ordinary BN Tt FEmRARER
shareholders 2B 29,006 -
100,870 74,274
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17. TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND

ACCRUALS (CONTINUED)

An aging analysis of trade payables as at the end of the reporting

17. ENEZERM - EtbBRAREAR

FERH IR ()

RBEHREEER - BAEBRRRE

period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: EQZEREDITIT ¢
30 June 31 December
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
ARA=+R +ZH=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REFEZR) (fe=:Z)
HK$’000 HKS$000
FET FET
Within 1 month —EAR 25,118 21,493
1to 3 months —Z==1{@R 1,945 2,807
4to 6 months N EE! 678 547
Over 6 months ~EA A E 398 459
28,139 25,306
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally JERTE SR TETE - —ARIZ30KHf

settled on 30-day terms.

18. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the

period are as follows:

Deferred tax assets

RS °

18. IEERE

FEERAEE

HIR - RERIREER BB ZEEHINT

2018
—E-N\F
Temporary

differences of
deferred
revenue
BEWA Z
TRERH
HK$’000
FET

At 1 January 2018

Deferred tax charged to the condensed consolidated
statement of profit or loss during the period

Exchange differences

At 30 June 2018

44

R-_ZE—\F—HA—H
HIRMER A ARAR & Ba R BT IR

PE X ERR

RZZE—\FRA=1+H

2,984

(335)
(50)

2,599
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18. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax liabilities

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B RS ERR M (4E)

Six months ended 30 June 2018 /= =& — \F/x A=+ H L/~ A A

18. IEAEHIE ()
EEBIREE

2018
—B-N\F
Fair value
adjustments
arising from
Revaluation acquisitionof ~ Withholding
of properties  subsidiaries taxes Total
W
HEARZ
WEER ATERE AHH st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FE7 FE7 FE

At 1 January 2018 RZFE-N\E—H—AH 1,526 11,008 2,713 15,247
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to the e YAG PN
condensed consolidated statement Bak JEREHE
of profit or loss during the period = (715) 351 (364)
At 30 June 2018 RZE-\FAA=TH 1,526 10,293 3,064 14,883
Deferred tax assets ELEHBREE
2017
—E—+F
Temporary
differences of
deferred
revenue
BIEWAZ
Y=
HKS'000
FET
At 1 January 2017 WZE—tF—H—H 2,994
Deferred tax charged to the consolidated FAHRGE BRR ZBELERIE
statement of profit or loss during the year (214)
Exchange differences fEHZ%8 204
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+=ZA=1+—H 2,984
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18. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

18. IEAEHLIE (])

Deferred tax liabilities EEFREEE
2017
S 2
Fair value
adjustments
arising from
Revaluation  acquisition of ~ Withholding
of properties subsidiaries taxes Total
Wi
EARZ
nEEL ATERE S st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FAT FIBT FAT FBT
At 1 January 2017 RZF—+5—-—H—H 1,378 12,438 3,658 17,474
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to the FRMG/GENEABER
consolidated statement of profit or loss LRI
during the year 148 (1,430 (665) (1,947)
Tax paid ENHE = = (280) (280)
At 31 December 2017 R_E—+tF+-A=1+—H 1,526 11,008 2,713 15,247

19. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

46

(a)

As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 11) under
operating lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for
terms ranging from one to two years. The terms of the leases
generally also require the tenants to pay security deposits and
provide for periodic rent adjustments according to the then
prevailing market conditions.

At 30 June 2018, the Group had total future minimum lease
receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with its
tenants falling due as follows:

19. KEHERH

(a)

EREHBA

AEBRELEHELHHEER
BEMEMEN)  BEZEPNF
—EMFEAE - BEHK—REL
BPXMNRERS - WAREBER
RITTRAEHABREE -

RZZE-NFRA=1TH  ~&H
RIBEEEPRFTN TR EM
ZA ARG LS HE MR B & EK

ZEEHEeRERT
30 June 31 December
2018 2017
—E-N\F T4
ANAB=t+H +=ZA=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEXR) (feFZ)
HK$’000 HKS'000
FETT FHET
Within one year —FNRN 2,708 2,797
In the second to fifth years, inclusive FIEFHhF(BIEEERSE) 783 2,089
3,491 4,886
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19. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Aslessee

The Group leases certain of its office properties under
operating lease arrangements. Leases for properties are
negotiated for terms ranging from one to four years.

At 30 June 2018, the Group had total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due

19. KEHERH(RA)

(b) fEREBA
AEBERBEEEHELHHEHERS
THREYE - AFEMEMZEL
HEHNF—Z2MF -

RZZE-—NFRA=1TH  ~&H
RIEH T 5 HABR i 2 1 AT U A4S

as follows: EHEmMN BEEN 2 ZEHESE
BT

30 June 31 December

2018 2017

—B-N\F —E—+F

AA=+R +ZH=+—H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REBFEZR) (fe=:Z)

HK$’000 HKS'000

FAETT FEIT

Within one year —FR 3,144 5,754

In the second to fifth years, inclusive FEEFAF(BREEERT) 2,330 2,998

5,474 8,752

20. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not
provided for in the financial information were as follows:

Guarantees have been given to certain banks by the Company for
performance bonds/guarantees issued by the banks in relation
to certain contracts undertaken by the Group amounting to
HK$27,800,000 (31 December 2017: HK$27,800,000), of which
HK$22,626,000 (31 December 2017: HK$20,537,000) were utilised as
at 30 June 2018.

T \FRHRE | HERGEEARAR

20. REE

RBEEHPEEER - AARRTBERR
ELBE HARBWT ¢

RATOHANERAE 2 ETANME
ERRITE R BHORE TERAET
$R1TIRML & 8027,800,0008 T ( —ZFE—+
F+—-A=+—8 : 27,800,000/ T) 2
R Hr22,626,00008 0 ( —F—+4F
+=-RBA=+—H 20,537,000 7C) &%
—FE-A\FXA=THEA -
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Six months ended 30 June 2018 &HZ=—ZF— \F/Ss A =+ H 1L/ @A

21. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions, arrangements and balances
detailed elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group had the
following transactions with related parties during the period:

Compensation of key management personnel of the Group:

21. BEALIRS
B ER S RE R MBS FR IS -
RHER BRI REERGNLETT
FIEATRS
AEBFEEEASYHMEMT

For the six months ended 30 June

BEAA=+tHLEAEAR

2018 2017

—E-N\EF —E A

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(RE&ER) (RE&EZ)

HK$’000 HKS'000

FET FET

Short term employee benefits REEBRA 6,711 6,310

Equity-settled share-based payment expense %A & AR () 2 F 2 296 273

Post-employment benefits BER 212 A 52 53
Total compensation paid to key TNEEEBRABZ

management personnel e 4E 7,059 6,636

22,
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts of the
Group's financial assets and liabilities reasonably approximated to

their fair values.

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, pledged bank deposits, trade receivables, deposits and
other receivables, trade payables and financial liabilities included in
other payables and accruals approximate to their carrying amounts
largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or
liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used

to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of listed equity and debt investments are based on

quoted market prices.

The fair value of a club membership debenture included in debt

investments is based on available market prices.

In prior years, the fair value of the available-for-sale investments are

based on available market prices.

48

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

zzgﬁlﬂﬁ$ﬁﬁﬁ$ﬁ%ﬁ¥

RBEHREER  AEBEMBEER
BEZEmMEEEAHESEMES

EEEDHEREAFRBESEE B
HIRRITER - BRESER BEk
Hp WA - BNE SRR - st AR
ENFIAR BT RBALHBREZA
FEEHKEERS  TEARZEFT
AZBHR®IE -

MBBEERABZATENEZIAR
FER 575 GRHIRF R B ERRIN B ATR
2 TAIRZGEEAR « TITERKR
TIRAMERt A -

R EHRE 2 R FHETIZTS
WESFL -

SAABEBREZEMERAERZATE
THETISEREH -

RBEFE  AIHEEREZRFETS
WIS EREH
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22. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value hierarchy

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B RS ERR M (4E)

Six months ended 30 June 2018 /= =& — \F/x A=+ H L/~ A A

22. BT EAFERAFESHRE

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy

of the Group’s financial instruments:
Assets measured at fair value:

As at 30 June 2018

B (&)

DNHESHRRE

TRETAEEUKEITARNFEFEZ

FRRE

BAVEBZEE

R-FE-NEXA=FH

Fair value measurement using

AVEFERANTRE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
inactive observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
EIR EATBE EATUEER
hiEHRE BAHE BABE
(%18) (%258) (%38) Azt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Financial assets at fair value through ~ ZAFELEFAKZ
profit or loss: MHERE -
Listed equity investments FRARE 10,584 - - 10,584
Debt investments BHRE 2,532 1,780 - 4,312
13,116 1,780 - 14,896
As at 31 December 2017 R-F—+F+-A=+—H
Fair value measurement using
AVEEFRAUTRE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
it BEATEE EATITER
TiEHE FAHE PAHE
(F1E) (%2E) (£3/) @t
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
FET FET FAT FET
Available-for-sale investment: AHHERE
Club membership debenture 2feEER - 1,780 - 1,780
Financial assets at fair value through AT ELESZAKZ
profit or loss: PHEE
Listed equity investments THRARE 10,857 - - 10,857
Debt investment BEBHE 2,544 - - 2,544
13,401 1,780 - 15,181

T \FRHRE | HERGEEARAR
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22.

23

50

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)
Liabilities measured at fair value:

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair
value as at 30 June 2018 and 31 December 2017.

During the period ended 30 June 2018, there were no transfers
of fair value measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial
liabilities (Year ended 31 December 2017: Nil).

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments include pledged bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents. The main purpose of
these financial instruments is to finance the Group’s operations.
The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such as
trade receivables, deposits and other receivables, trade and other
payables, financial liabilities included in accruals, financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, and available-for-sale investments,
which mainly arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk, equity price risk
and liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies
for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk
The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates

relates primarily to the Group’s cash at banks and bank deposits
with floating interest rates.

22.

23.

MBIAAFERDFESRE
B (&)

DFEEREE(E)
BAVEBEZAE

AEER T N\FRA=TEE=-ZF
—tF+ A=+ RUEEFIRAF
B EZHKRE -

BE_T-N\FRA=THILBH %
1EEF2EFMENEEENMBA
BERHEFEER  TEAFENES
AREBHEEIB(BHE-_T—+F+=A
=t+—HLFEE: 8-

MR EREE B R RBER

AEBZIE2HMBTABRDEMRT
FRARBRERERRGEE - ERH
BTAZEFERGEIAARE 2 X
BE-AEEEHEBERUBEERA
& EKE SRR - e REMEK
IR~ BN E SRR E A R
SPARF BB EE  BRAFEL
BRARZMBEERAHOERE -
HEMHEERABEIEARKZER
BEL -

AEEMBTAELEZ T ZRABRR/NEK
Rk - SRR - EERR - BRAMER
REERSEERR - EFESEHIRF
BN X Pt e I S TAE R 2 R o

R =k
RE B A e T 45 B R 2 E M AR 2 LR

TEEAEEFHNRITRBIZBNEX
FRZBRE RIRITIFRER -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B RS ERR M (4E)

Six months ended 30 June 2018 /= =& — \F/x A=+ H L/~ A A

23. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVESAND 23. BiiEMEEBEERBEEK (&)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Interest rate risk (continued) F 2= [ B (48

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably TREHNEFBHMEH BT E 215
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held AT NEE R AN (B BFEF
constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (through the impact on RIFITHEBRIRITERIE R ) HFH =

floating rate bank balances and bank deposits). SRR IR E) 2 BURIEE ©
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in in profit
basis points before tax

Eghigm, BRB AT
(R4) 8 ORd)

HKS'000
FET

As at 30 June 2018 R=Z2-N\FXA=+H
Hong Kong dollar BIT (25) (133)
United States dollar E~ViH (25) (265)
Renminbi (“RMB") ARE(TARK]D (25) (231)
Hong Kong dollar BT 25 133
United States dollar x7T 25 265
RMB AR 25 231
As at 30 June 2017 RZE—tHFRA=1TH
Hong Kong dollar BT (25) (223)
United States dollar xTT (25) (181)
RMB AR (25) (195)
Hong Kong dollar BIT 25 223
United States dollar ETT 25 181
RMB AR 25 195
There is no impact on the Group’s equity except on the retained BRORER R FAN - 37N & [ IR AT 48 A 4]
profits. FE
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Six months ended 30 June 2018 &HZ=—ZF— \F/Ss A =+ H 1L/ @A

23.

52

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVESAND 23. i EMEEEEREE (&)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Foreign currency risk S i
The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures REBERETHEERR - tRRBREE
mainly arise from revenue generated and/or costs and expenses RERE BB FEAZEMIEEEL
incurred by operating units in currencies other than the units’ INERERRER 2 WA R REE Z AR K
functional currencies. FIZ °
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of TREIIEMEEMERERIZE 215
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the RMB T AEBERBREARGEER 2R
exchange rates, with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s Aaf(AEEEENBBEATFERE)
profit before tax (due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets HARKEERTESIEEE) « GURIEE o
and liabilities).
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in in profit
exchange rate before tax

ExtH BRBE AT 2
(FE&) i CR4)

% HKS'000
FET
As at 30 June 2018 R=Z2-NFXA=+H
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB BT ARBRZE 5 (495)
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB il T H AR FE (5) 495
As at 30 June 2017 RZZE—+FA=1H
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB BT ARBRZE 5 (203)
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB i3 7T 3 A R EFHE (5) 203
There is no impact on the Group's equity except on the retained BRORER R AAI - 3 7N & (5] i AR AL fe A 4]
profits. R
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

I ERRME(E)

Six months ended 30 June 2018 /= =& — \F/x A=+ H L/~ A A

23. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Credit risk

The Group primarily trades on credit terms with recognised
and creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that most
customers who wish to trade on credit terms are to a certain
extent subject to certain credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which comprise
pledged bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents, debt investments
and deposits and other receivables, mainly arises from default of
the counterparties, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying
amounts of these instruments.

Since the Group primarily trades on credit terms with recognised
and creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for collateral.

Concentration of credit risk are managed by customer/counterparty,
by geographical region and by industry sector. At the end of the
reporting period, the Group had certain concentration of credit risk
as 43.5% (31 December 2017: 22.8%) of the total trade receivables
of the Group were due from certain departments/units of the
Government of the HKSAR, the Group's largest customer.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 15 to
the financial statements.

—N\ERHRE | B RGEEARAR

23. MISEMERE B SR EEEK ()

FERR
ﬁ'EIIE,\wT&f BRIFZE=T
hz ERIGFETRS - WRAKE 2K

P RED %ﬁthﬂZfﬂ%?ﬁLﬁ P E
)f' EXBRE LVNALBETEEERZ
RFR - TADEE - I SR

AR R BEELER -

AEBHEMMKEE - BROEMRT
TR BERFRAREEE ﬁﬂ‘%&i
AEZE REMEWRIRZ EERRE

EREXSHHFELY  ME=ERES
RUtETAZ REE -
HRAREIRER A MEERIFZH

HREREGRRETR S  HEFEM

=
on °

EESTREBRBEERE HFHRibEX
RITED AN TR - RREHHLEHE
g EBBGK%IE%H&ZE%EEM,W%EEPﬁ
435%(ZFE—tF+A=+—H:
22.8%) BREWE B BIT TR BT (A&
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AEBAZ—TFEEETRERR -
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23.

54

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity securities
decrease as a result of changes in the levels of equity indices and
the value of individual securities. The Group is exposed to equity
price risk arising from individual equity investments classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - listed equity
investments in Hong Kong (note 16) as at 30 June 2018 and 31
December 2017. The Group'’s listed equity investments are listed on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and are valued at quoted
market prices at the end of the reporting period.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 10%
change in the fair values of the Group’s listed equity investments,
with all other variables held constant and before any impact on tax,
based on their carrying amounts at the end of the reporting period.

23. BIERERE B RRBE(E)

IRASE % E B

BN (E S R 2 46 B 0 B 3R 5 BN {1
EFBEIBLEREATLF 2 AFE
Rz AR - AEEZBRAEBRRERIR
RE_Z-NFRA=tAR-ZF—+
F+_A=+T—HARBEIBARATE
REBmARCHMBEE-BBLHEA
RE (MaE16) < ARIRARE - NEE
ZEMBRABREREEHAXSABR
RAELE™ - RBEHREEE BIRHISH
BFHE -

TREINEMBRMEHERTEZIE
AT RARHEARBEZER - ARKE
BEREE  AKELEHERARENESE
HRGEERZ 2 FESZE10%E @ 17
FAHE 2 BURIEE -

Carrying Increase/

amount (decrease)

of equity in profit

investments before tax

RAIRE 2 BREL A=A

FREE #m, CEd)

HKS$’000 HKS'000

FET FET
As at 30 June 2018 R=Z2-NFXHA=1+H
Equity investments listed in Hong Kong: EEE LM ZBRARE :

- Held-for-trading —BIEEE 10,584 1,058

As at 31 December 2017 R-_E—+F+-_F=+—H

Equity investments listed in Hong Kong: EEBLEMZRAKRE :

- Held-for-trading —BIEEE 10,857 1,086

There is no impact on the Group’s equity except on the retained
profits.

BROREE M AISN - AN SR B AR A B SR A AR

B788
2
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23. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to ensure there are adequate funds to
meet its contractual payments for financial liabilities in the short
and long term. In the management of liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and bank balances, and
bank deposits deemed adequate by management to finance the
Group'’s operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. Cash flows of the Group are closely monitored by senior
management on an ongoing basis.

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities at the end
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted
payments, is as follows:

23. MISEMERE B SR EEEK ()

RBETER

AEBZ BRERBERERENE T IARE
NEEHALRERzHBEABEEHOMNRK -
EERBETARE  AEEERNE
REEBRRERREASEZEMS
Be RRITESKRBITER - WRIER
RERBNBDERITE - SREREE
FEZERAEEZRERE -

RBEHREGEER AEEREBEEOR
FRNFAAE 2B ARG BHBE RN
T

As at 30 June 2018 R=Z2—-N\FXA=1H
Lessthan  3tolessthan
On demand 3 months 12 months Total
RERER HPRZEA ZE+=@ARK #@st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Trade payables JENE SRR 26,925 144 1,070 28,139
2017 Dividends and other payables T ERER
Hith e 50IE - 59,415 - 59,415
Financial liabilities included in STARREEZ
accruals nBat - 3,578 - 3,578
Guarantees given to banks for HASEAEZET
performance bonds/guarantees BRELBORE
issued in relation to certain contracts ERMARTRE
undertaken by the Group ZER 22,626 - - 22,626
49,551 63,137 1,070 113,758
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Six months ended 30 June 2018 & EZ =%

23.

24.

56

—N\FERA=TRIEREA

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

23.

MR EE B R RBUR ()

Liquidity risk (continued) mENE SR (E)
As at 31 December 2017 R=ZZ—+tF+=-A=+—H
Less than 3 to less than
On demand 3 months 12 months Total
REKER PIM=R =ZZ+-fAAR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT FAT FBT
Trade payables FERE SR 22,251 2,223 832 25,306
Other payables HiERF0a = 29,874 - 29,874
Financial liabilities included in BN e v
accruals IaE - 3,980 = 3,980
Guarantees given to banks for WAKERE AT
performance bonds/quarantees AN LBORE
issued in relation to certain contracts BRMmARITRA
undertaken by the Group ZER 20,537 - - 20,537
42,788 36,077 832 79,697
Capital management BEREE

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group regularly reviews and manages its capital structure and
makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. The Group is not subject to any externally imposed
capital requirements. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the period ended
30 June 2018 and year ended 31 December 2017.

Capital of the Group comprises all components of shareholders’
equity.

APPROVAL OF THE INTERIM FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The interim financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 21 August 2018.

24,

AEFREAERE 2 TZANIRRER
SEBEREZRNLERFRRERL
o PUXHEEB R SBRREREAE
=0

AEBRBEE RN EE RAAREE
ZREBEE - THENLEEEANGERE
RAEH AR - AEE R BB HE R
RIR#EZBE - ARREEEALELT
MBARTBRABREARER - AREL
ﬂEﬁ@J\*BEMDZﬁﬁ%ﬁ ABET °
BE T N\FRA=THIBHENIE
E-F ti-i— A=+—HLLFE
A AREZEREERR  BORIE
Frif et -

REE 2 BARRATEBCRES DMK

R R

ExenN T/ \FN\A-T—ALE
KA HET %*EP HARA TSR -

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited | Interim Report 2018



DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 30 June 2018, the interests of the directors in the share capital
and underlying shares of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFQ")), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

Other Information

HE#

ESRBROREBRO 2EERXR

REZFE—NFRNA=Z1+H JFTEERALQF
NEBEAE(EERESFRPEEGI([E

NEREEM ) SBXVED) 2 B& AN M AERE AR 15 #E
BARRNEVERIER S RS BOIF 3521548 E
TEZ&&%@%@%X@#Lm%ﬁA%
FETEHFRINEESTASITAE AR

N R BT

EAREBRZER :

Number of shares held,

capacity and nature of interest Percentage

FERAHEE  SoRERME of the

Directly Through Company'’s

beneficially controlled issued

owned corporation Total share capital

RN

Note HiZ EiB BRITRA

Name of director EEgE HiaF Bl ZEHELH P Bl
Ng Cheung Shing RER (@) 3,300,000 110,000,000 113,300,000 46.40
Cheung Wai Lam RIEFR 1,000,000 = 1,000,000 0.41
Leung King San, Sunny 225 %7 1,010,000 -~ 1,010,000 0.41
Ng Kwok Keung R 58 520,000 -~ 520,000 0.21
5,830,000 110,000,000 115,830,000 47.43
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Other Information (continued)

Hib &R (F

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN ESRBROREBERO 2 EERXR
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (CONTINUED) (&)
Long positions in shares of an associated corporation: R—EEBCEER D 2T
Percentage
Number of shares of the
BG#E associated
Name of Relationship Directly Through  corporation’s
associated with the Class of beneficially controlled  issued share
Name of director corporation Company shares owned  corporation capital
AR
EE EB  EBRORAE
HEpA MHEOEEAE BADNRZBR R4 5 BERfE LT Bt
Ng Cheung Shing Computer And  Company's subsidiary Non-voting 1,750,000 3,250,000 N/A
REH Technologies AR ZHIBAH deferred (note Fff#E(b)) TEH
International Limited EREERT

P2 GARAR
Notes: BisE

(@)  The 110,000,000 shares were held by Chao Lien Technologies Limited (“Chao  (a)  C.S. (BVI) Limited 2 2 B M B A BB R £ A

Lien”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of C.S. (BVI) Limited. Mr. Ng Cheung Shing RAal ([ &8 )45 110,000,000 &5

was entitled to exercise or control the exercise of one-third or more of the SRR A B ERCS. (BVI) Limited Z A% 5 K

voting power at general meetings of C.S. (BVI) Limited, which in turn was g LITESKIEFIITE=S 2 A L2 ®RE

entitled to exercise or control the exercise of one-third or more of the voting #E - MCS. (BVI) Limited Bl B HE FAMB B AR 3R K

power at general meetings of Chao Lien. Accordingly, Mr. Ng Cheung Shing e FTFEREHTE=s 2 —HANLERE

was deemed, under the SFO, to be interested in all shares held by Chao Lien. A BEFSFRBEERD  SREBEL

SRR AN EEITRE CBRNDPHEE#E

(b)  The 3,250,000 non-voting deferred shares were held by Chao Lien. (b)  #%3,250,000 J% £ 15 S IE % 17 T R B Bt 45
5o

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2018, none of the directors had R EXHWEEIN R-FT—\FRA=1
registered an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares B BEE SR A R B S AT AHEAE 2
of the Company or any of its associated corporations that was required to RO RABRER DT - BEREBEES LB
be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified 153521678 T8k - SiRBE EH#EITAES
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for 1T F X ZMRETAISTHME AR F K
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers. B R R SRR ©
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the sections "Share option scheme" and “Restricted
share award scheme” below, at no time during the period were rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures
of the Company granted to any director or their respective spouse or
minor children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the
Company, or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme for the primary purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute
to the success of the Group’s operations.

No share option of the Company was granted, exercised, cancelled or
lapsed during the period.

RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Company adopted a renewed restricted share award scheme (the
“Award Scheme”) on 31 May 2017 (the “Adoption Date”). Pursuant to
the Award Scheme, shares of the Company (the “Awarded Shares”) are
granted to eligible employees (including directors) of the Group until the
10™ anniversary from the Adoption Date. The Company shall also pay
cash to the appointed trustee company for its acquisition and holding
upon trust of the Awarded Shares for the benefit of these employees
and directors. The Awarded Shares will then be transferred to these
employees and directors upon vesting. The aggregate number of shares
to be awarded under the Award Scheme throughout its duration shall
not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company from time to
time.

Details of the Award Scheme are set out in a circular of the Company
dated 26 April 2017.
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Hib &R ()
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RS
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Other Information (continued)

Hib &R (F

RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The following table illustrates the number and movements of the

B BRI B 7 22 b=t &I ()
TREFIBE-T—/\FXA=+H LLERH

Awarded Shares under the Award Scheme during the period ended 30 A HEENT 28 T~ EEIAHD 2 8B R EEZH) o
June 2018.
Number of Unvested Awarded Shares
AERRARAHUE Weighted
At Awarded Vested Forfeited At average
Name of category 1January during during the during the 30June Vesting period of fair value
of participant 2018 the period period period 2018 Award date Awarded Shares per share
SEENS RZB-NE RZZ-NE SRing
B g5 -B-A  HAERE  HACER BRERK  A~ASTA RiEBAS RERGERY  THATE
HKS
AT
Directors
3
Ng Cheung Shing - 250,000 - - 250,000 14 May 2018 30 April 2019 to 283
KM “I\% 30 April 2023
RATIA “Z-NEMA=TRE
ZZCEMA=TA
Cheung Wai Lam 100,000 = = = 100,000 14 January 2014 31 December 2014 to 188
FER “E-mE 31 December 2018
—A+EA “2-BET-A=T-H
“F-\#t-h=1-H
Cheung Wai Lam 200,000 - - - 200,000 14 October 2016 30 September 2017 to 243
FER “ERE 30 September 2021
+TATEA ZB-tENAZTRE
“R--EAAZTR
Cheung Wai Lam - 250,000 - - 250,000 14 May 2018 30 April 2019to 243
FER “TE 30 April 2023
AR ZENERA=TRE
ZEICEMA=TA
Ng Kwok Keung 50,000 - (50,000 - - 28 March 2013 30 April 2014 to 145
REI% -F-= 30 April 2018
ZA=tNB ZZ-IEMA=TRE
ZE-/\ERA=TA
Ng Kwok Keung 72,000 - (24,000) - 48,000 4May 2015 30 April 2016 to 262
RE% “3-1f 30 April 2020
A AMA ZE-NERAZTHE
ZZ-ZEMA=TH
Ng Kwok Keung - 250,000 - - 250,000 14 May 2018 30 April 2019to 243
RE® “Z-)\E 30 April 2023
RATIA ZE-NERA=TRE
TEC-EMA=TA
422,000 750,000 (74,000) - 1,098,000
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Other Information (continued)

Hih&ER (&)
RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME (CONTINUED) BIRFIMR 10 2R BT 8 (&)
Number of Unvested Awarded Shares
AERERROHE Weighted
At Awarded Vested Forfeited At average
Name of category 1January during during the during the 30June Vesting period of fair value
of participant 2018 the period period period 2018 Award date Awarded Shares per share
SRENE R=8-N\%F RZ8-N§ SRinE
il 543 -f-A  HAEEE  HHCEE BAERK AA=TA REKEAR REROERE  THOTE
HKS
AT
Other employees
-
Inaggregate 80,000 - (80,000) - - 28 March 2013 30 April 2014 to 145
a5t “E-oF 30 April 2018
ZA=t/R “Z-MEMA=THE
ZE-\§mA=TH
Inaggregate 20,000 = = = 20,000 12 August 2013 30 September 2014 to 158
) “Z-zF 30 September 2018
NAtZA ZE-NENA=TRE
- \FNA=TH
Inaggregate 117,000 - (39,000) (30,000) 48,000 4 May 2015 30 April 2016 to 262
st —Z-1f 30 April 2020
RAMA ZE-NEMA=TRE
“ZREMA=TH
Inaggregate 96,000 - - - 96,000 14 October 2016 30 September 2017 to 2483
ECh) “E-5F 30 September 2021
TATEA “E-tEAA=TRE
ZB--FRAZTR
Inaggregate - 1,325,000 - - 1,325,000 14 May 2018 30 April 2019to 243
st I\ 30 April 2023
AR ZE-NERA-TRZ
ZRCCEMA=TR
735,000 2,075,000 (193,000) (30,000) 2,587,000
—T- \FHPRE | B EREEAERAF
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Other Information (continued)

Hib &R ()

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 30 June 2018, the following interests of more than 5% of the issued
share capital and share options of the Company were recorded in the
register of interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to

Section 336 of the SFO:

FERRREMALRRG RBBER

0z

RZZE-N\FRA=1TH U TRARRA
OB B RIBRE 75 M BB 15 55 336 (R R E 17
BEZRGEECMAERRAR D EITRALE

R AEES% A b2 RS

Long positions: HRE
Percentage
of the
Number of Company's Number
ordinary issued share of share
Name of shareholder of the Company Notes  Capacity and nature of interest shares held capital options held
NG|
BRTRE Fiss
ERRRREE £ Mt BRREREE FisgER#E Al BREZE
Chao Lien Technologies Limited (@)  Directly beneficially owned 110,000,000 45.05 -
BERRARAR EREHEAR
C.S. (BVI) Limited (@  Through a controlled corporation 110,000,000 45.05 -
BRZEHINF
Puttney Investments Limited (“PIL") (b)  Directly beneficially owned 29,148,938 11.94 -
EREHER
Hutchison International Limited ("HIL") (b)  Through a controlled corporation 29,148,938 11.94 -
FERXEH R
Hutchison Whampoa Limited ("HWL") (b)  Through a controlled corporation 29,148,938 11.94 -
M ERERAR([FIE]) BRZEHINF
Cheung Kong (Holdings) Limited (“CKH") (b)  Through a controlled corporation 29,148,938 11.94 -
RIEX(ER)ERAA(RE]) BRZEHINE
CK Hutchison Holdings Limited (“CKHH") (b)  Through a controlled corporation 29,148,938 11.94 -
RIMZEXERAR(RM]) BRZEHINE
Hui Yau Man Directly beneficially owned 26,782,000 1097 -
X BERBHEAR
Webb David Michael Directly beneficially owned 5,241,000 215 -
BEEBHHER
(c)  Through a controlled corporation 9,445,000 3.87 -
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
(CONTINUED)

Long positions: (continued)

Notes:

(@)  The interest was also disclosed as an interest of Mr. Ng Cheung Shing in the
section “Directors’ interests and short positions in shares and underlying
shares” of this report.

(b)  PIL is a wholly-owned subsidiary of HIL, which in turn is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of HWL. CKH is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CKHH and
subsidiaries of CKH are entitled to exercise or control the exercise of more
than one-third of the voting power at the general meetings of HWL. By virtue
of the SFO, CKHH, CKH, HWL and HIL were deemed to be interested in the
29,148,938 shares of the Company held by PIL.

(c) The 9,445,000 shares were held by Preferable Situation Assets Limited
(“PSAL"). PSAL was 100% directly owned by Mr. Webb David Michael and
accordingly, Mr. Webb David Michael is deemed to be interested in the said
shares held by PSAL.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2018, no person, other than the
directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in the section
“Directors’ interests and short positions in shares and underlying shares”
above, had registered an interest or short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company that was required to be recorded
under Section 336 of the SFO.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the period, the trustee of the Company’s restricted share award
scheme had, pursuant to the terms of the rules and trust deed of such
scheme, purchased from the market a total of 940,000 shares of the
Company being the awarded restricted shares. The total amount paid
to acquire these 940,000 shares during the period was approximately
HK$2,811,000.

Except as disclosed above, neither the Company, nor any of its

subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed
securities during the reporting period.

T \FRHRE | HERGEEARAR

Other Information (continued)

Hib &R ()

FERRREMALRRG RBBER
10z s ()

- ()

@ FZERTNNAREEERRD RABRERG 2
BEmRAR | —HRARBESRRBEE

Sz
ZS o
m

(b) PILTIHILZ ZEMB AR HLAIAFM=EZZ
BEWBRGE - REARMZZEHBAR
MREZWBARIAEERMECRIRE £
BAITERZEFBR=0 — R - IRRE
EREEES - B - RE - FERHILES
YERAPILFTH529,148,938A% A A A& (0 AP HE B 1

5o

() 9,445,000 i% I 17 M Preferable Situation Assets
Limited ([ PSAL |) 5B ° PSAL Fi Webb David
Michael St E# A 2 5% - FHLL © Webb
David Michael 4t 4 # 1R {EFAPSALIE B 2 Lt
B EE R -

BREXHEEIN RZZF-NFRA=T
B REESHN EXEFENRMD RAHEK
2R SORR | — B 2 RRRERS - B
EAIATRAR R BB F ERLR
B 5 M EE RIS 3361678 T Ak 2 #Em

HA o
BE  BEORHELARATRLTES

B - RARIZ RN EZEEF RN FEA
ERBEZFTEFR A R ETRBENGER - BT
B E NN T4 $£940,00008 8% 1 - ENEEENS
R0 o HARpE S B 5255 940,000f% I 1 2
S4B EE4) 452,811,000/ 7T °

B DB ESN - ARR R EANER T
RIS EREE  BE RS ETAR
AL -
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Other Information (continued)

Hib &R ()

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standard of corporate
governance within a sensible framework with an emphasis on the
principles of integrity, transparency and accountability. The Board
believes that good corporate governance is essential to the success of the
Company and to the enhancement of shareholders’ value.

The Board opined that the Company has complied with the code
provision set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG code”) as
stipulated in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) during the
reporting period.

The Company considers that sufficient measures have been taken to
ensure that its corporate governance practices are similar to those
provided in the CG Code.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules as its code of conduct for dealings in securities of the
Company by the directors. Based on a specific enquiry of the Company’s
directors, the directors have complied with the required standard set out
in the Model Code throughout the six months ended 30 June 2018.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has an audit committee which was established in
compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules for the purpose of
reviewing and providing supervision over the Group’s financial reporting
process, risk management and internal controls. The Audit Committee
comprises three independent non-executive directors of the Company.
The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the period ended 30 June 2018 with the management the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed
risk management and internal controls and financial reporting matters
related to the preparation of the unaudited interim financial information
for the six months ended 30 June 2018.
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